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3508 S O M E R S E T CIR, KISSIMMEE, FL 34746

(347) 494-2356

October 31, 2023

The Honorab le Pete Butt igieg

Secretary of Transportation

1200 N e w Jersey Ave SE,

Washington, DC 20590

Dear Secretary Buttigieg:

l am the managing member of Pink Cheetah Express, LLC (USDOT 3284151). Unlike
most independent truckers regulated by your Department, | hold a JD degree so | know
how to research, interpret and apply the law.

This is a c o m p t a i n tt o the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) aga ins t

Total Qual i ty Logistics (TQL) regarding the issue of property broker rate transparency,
which, as you know, has been an issue for hundreds of thousands of independent

truckers over the past three and a ha l f years ever s ince truckers protested outs ide the
Whi te House for three weeks starting on May 1, 2020.



On March 16, 2023, Federal Motor Car t ier Safety Administrat ion (FMCSA) approved

May 2020 peti t ions for rulemaking from the Owner Operator Independent Dr ivers

Associat ion (OOIDA) and the Smal l Bus iness in Transportat ion Coal i t ion (SBTC)

request ing enhanced 49 C F R Part 371 regulations to stop brokers? practice of coerc ing
independent truckers and motor carriers to waive the broker rate transparency

regulat ions in 49 C F R 371.3 as a condi t ion for receiv ing loads.

On March 17, 2023, FMCSA denied an opposing petition from the Transportation
Intermediaries Association (TIA) to repeal the broker rate transparency regulations
codified in 49 CFR Part 371 outright.

Recently, the F M C S A advised the publ ic it will not commence rulemaking on these

petit ions until October 31, 2024, more than one year from now.

On October 24, 2023, the FMCSA denied the SBTC's September 27, 2023 request for

an order direct ing all property brokers to immediately cease and desist from evad ing the
4 9 C F R 371.3 regulat ion through contractual waivers as an interim enforcement

measure a n d to compel brokers? compl iance with 371.3c requests to review records. |

also understand whereas SBTC requested that F M C S A commence ru lemaking sooner

than a year from now, that request, too, was denied.

On May 1, 2023, the S B T C through its attorney Laurence Socci wrote the letter

referenced be low to Total Quality Logistics (TQL) on behal f of my company > ink

Cheetah Express, LLC, which had previously requested to review TQL's transact ional

records pursuant to 49 C F R 371.3 and was denied. The SBTC demanded on m y beha l f

as an SBTC member that TOL immediately cease and desist from violating 49 C F R
371.3. S B T C asserted that waivers of the broker rate transparency regulat ion are

unlawful as matters of the evasion of regulation statute (49 U.S. Code § 14£06,)

unreasonable restraint o f trade and caselaw. Larry Minor at F M C S A was copied.

On May 7, 2023, the SBTC thereafter, fi led the ethics complaint be iow against TQL wi th

TIA regard ing this matter also copying FMCSA. TIA responded by issuing what SBTC

has character ized as a bogus cease and desist letter to SBTC al leging defamat ion

because SBTC character ized TIA advocacy staff's lobbying act ions in suppairt o f its
members? attempts to evade regulat ion through contractual waivers as ?protlematic?

and ?underhanded,? point ing to the sham petit ioning exception to the Noer r -Penn ington
Doctrine, which SBTC vehement ly protested in response as baseless anda futile
int imidation tactic.



As indicated below, | personally received a denial from TQL in reply to my request to
review transactional records on a load | hauled for TQL in violation of 49 CFR 371.3. |

therefore have standing to file this compiaint with you.

( a p p e a r s T Q L is engag ing in unreasonable restraint of trade as a market r a n i p u l a t i o n
scheme w h i c h is in v io la t ion o f Antitrust laws.

As S B T C slated to you on September 27, 2023:

?Simply stated, independen t truckers a n d o w n e r operators will no t su-v ive

ano the r year wi thout you issu ing an immediate morator ium order on brokers?
un law fu l pract ice o f deregulat ing themselves through contractual wai sers. There

i s suff ic ient case law that has establ ished that regulated enti t ies cannot

contractual ly waive Federal l aw or regulat ions absent s p e c i f i c Congress iona l

author i ty fo do so (Hayes v. Delber t Services Corp 811 F.3d 666 (4th Cir.

2016)" . . .Delber t seeks to avo id federal law through the prospect ive w a i v e r o f

federa l l a w prov is ion found in the arbitration agreement. Bu t that prov is ion is

s imp l y unenforceable. With o n e hand, the arbitration agreement offers an
a l temat ive dispute resolution procedure in which aggr ieved persons m a y bring

the i r claims, a n d with the other, it proceeds to take those very cla ims away. The

j u s t a n d eff icient system o f arbitration intended by Congress when it p a s s e d the
FAA m a y no t p l a y host to this sort o f farce." )?

The S B T C advises me that nearly six months after its cease and des is t letter, dr ivers

are still report ing to S B T C that TOL cont inues to evade the 371.3 regulation in its

contracts and rely on the wa ive r to deny drivers? regulatory rights to review t-ansact ional
records the drivers are involved with. SBTC also advises other than an

acknow ledgement of receipt, it has not heard back from TIA on their ethics compla in t

against TQL.

As you know, the F M C S A has regulat ions prohibi t ing intimidation and coerc ion by

brokers codif ied at 49 CFR 390.6 with respect to various regulations, including, but not

limited to, 4 9 C F R § 369.5 Records, wh ich requires of motor carriers:

?Books, records a n d carr ier operat ing documents shai l be reta ined as prescr ibed
in 4 9 C F R par t 379, Preservat ion o f Records.?



| attempted in good faith to acquire records pursuant to 49 CFR 371.3 in furtherance of
myobligations under 49 CFR § 369.5 but was coerced by TQL through the unlawful
waiver from obtaining same in violation of 49 CFR 390.6.

Given the broker agent's tone and demeanor, | believe that ! was treated in a
discriminatory fashion because | am female, which makes me a minority in tuck ing.

As you also know, unde r Federal law (49 USC 13101(b)), you have a duty to carry ou t

Congress? National Transportation Policy. | point to what | betieve are the relevant

sect ions invo lved in this matter below:

§13101. Transportation pol icy

(a) in General.-To ensure the development, coordination, a n d preservat ion o f a

transportat ion sys tem that meets the transportation needs o f the Uni ted States,

inc lud ing the Uni ted States Posta l Service a n d nat ional defense, it is the po l i cy o f
the Uni ted States Government to oversee the modes o f transportation a n d -

(1) in overseeing those modes-

(D) to encourage the e s t a b l i s h m e n ta n d maintenance o f reasonable rates for
transportat ion, w i thout unreasonable discrimination or unfair or destn ic t ive

compet i t ive pract ices,

(2) in overseeing transportation by motor canter, to promote compet i t 've a n d
eff ic ient transportation services in order to-

(A) encourage fair competition, and reasonable rates for transportation by moto r

carriers o f property;

(8) promote efficiency in the motor carrier transportation system and to require
fair and expeditious decisions when required;

(D) a l low a variety o f qual i ty a n d pr ice opt ions to meet chang ing marke t d e m a n d s

a n d the diverse requirements o f the shipping and traveling publ ic;

(F) enable eff icient a n d wel l -managed carriers to e a m adequate profits, attract

capital, and mainta in fair wages a n d working condit ions;

( ) improve and maintain a sound, safe, and competitive privately owned motor
carrier system;

(J) p romote greater part ic ipat ion by minor i t ies in the motor carr ier system;



Accordingly, | hereby file this fetter as a coercion complaint against TOL pursuant to
49 CFR 390.6.

Please also accept this letter as a complaint against TQL p u r s u a n tt o 49 U.S. Code
14701(b):

| hereby request U S D O T conduct an investigation and issue an order enforceable by

you and/or the At tomey Genera l (and privately enforceable under 49 U.S. Gade § 14704

- Rights a n d remedies o f persons injured by carriers or brokers) directing TOL to (1)

immedia te ly provide me with copies o f any and all documents for the ioad in quest ion

referenced be low pursuant to my rights under 49 CFR § 371.3c; and (2) to cease and

desist engag ing in TQL's coerc ive practice of evas iono f t h e 371.3 broker raie
t ransparency regulat ions in any and all respects, no matter who is the camer, a n d

obstruct ing my obl igat ion to preserve records under 4 9 CFR § 369.5 in violat ion of 49

U.S. C o d e § 14906. I respectful ly request a copy o f such an order.

| also ask you to take whatever o t h e r act ion U S D O T deems j u s t and proper, inc luding

assess ing civil penal t ies and referring this matter to the USDOT Inspector General

and/or the US Depar tment of Justice's Antitrust Division.

Sincerely,

Dakota Po lkowska S s , Managing Member

Pink Cheetah Express LLC THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF TRAVIS

Before me on this day personal ly appeared Dakota Polkowska

cc: Hon. US Senator Marco Rubio Springfields, proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed herein

Hon. US Senator Rick Scott and, being by me first duly sworn, declared that the

s s T c statements herein are true and correct.

Given under my hand and seal of office this
31st day of October 2023.

Jacob Emerson

Notary Public, State of Texas

Notarized online using audio-video communication

o u Jacob Emerson

ID NUMBER

1933605027

COMMISSION EXPIRES

February 28, 2028



From: ?James Lamb" <james@truckers.com>

Date: Sun, May 7, 2023 2:32 pm

To: reinke@tianet.org

Cc: burroughs@ltianet.org, laurence.soccl@soccilawfirm.com, delpercio@tianet.org,
bond@tianet.org, larry.minor@dot.gov, compliance@tal.com, info@fiata.org,
legal@fiata.org, ?offica@nsbs.bg" <office@nsbs.bg>, "secretariat@nsbs.bg!
<secretariat@nsbs.bg>, ?transexpress@transexpress.bg?
<transexpress@transexpress.bg>

Subject: TIA Ethics Complaint from the SBTC against TOL

Dear Ms. Reinke,

As you know, the TIA issued a model contract between brokers and carriers years ago
in the spirit of "best practices."

This documen t contains no language suggest ing brokers should ask independen t

truckers and motor carriers to waive their regulatory rights to documents 49 C F R 371.3

des igned to afford these parties to transactions to know broker commiss ions, wh ich T I A

calls "marg ins, " as a condit ion to do business.

Notwi thstanding TIA's fai led August 2020 petit ion to F M C S A for rulemaking ?o repeal 49
CFR 371.3, which, as you know, the agency denied on March 17, 2023, it therefore

appears that it is N O T the pol icy of TIA to recommend brokers evade regulat ion through
contracts that waive truckers? rights to broker rate transparency.

It appears FMCSA has rejected TIA's argument that brokers are somehow shippers with
ther i g h t to waive regulations pursuant to 49 CFR § 14101b.

We also no te that F M C S A is proceeding with our request to strengthen the t i roker rate

t ransparency rule as per its March 16, 2023 petition approvat tetter to SBTC.

We believe it therefore now well established that brokers are not shippers entitled to
waive 49 CFR § 371,3c under 49 CFR § 14101b by virtue of the ICC Termination Act of



1995 and that FMCSA's attached March 1, 2022 interim letter, which affirms that
brokers should be abiding by all regulations that apply to them during the pendancy of

rulemaking, is now authoritative and binding upon all brokers including TQL and all

other TIA members that operate as duly licensed and bonded property brokers.

Accordingly, the S B T C has issued a C E A S E & DESIST letter to TOL for having
language that makes wa ive r of 371.3 in its contracts as a condit ion for receiv ing loads

from TQL.

Please see that letter below.

C o m e s now, the SBTC to file this non-member Ethics Compla in t wi th TIA pursuan t to

your comp la in t procedures on behal f of the SBTC membersh ip as many o f cu r

members have been adverse ly affected by what we believe is TIA?s unethical if no t

unlawful po l icy contrary t o your model agreement and Ethics Code.

By copy o f this email , w e hereby request that Pol ly Bond, TIA?s staff member ass igned

to the Ethics Commit tee, please forward our compl iant on to the Ethics Corrm i t t ee for

adjudicat ion.

We have dupl icated your attached non-f i l lable PDF compla in t form below and of fer this

compla in t v ia emai l in accordance wi th your instructions posted at

htips:/www.tianet.orgAvp-contentuploads/2019/02/Ethics-Complaint-Form.pdf

The SBTC requests your Ethics Commission please review and process our complaint

and issue a determination as to whether TIA concludes TQL is indeed violat ng your
ethics policy by circumventing we believe obviausly in bad faith 49 CFR 371.3 - i f not
outright evading carriers? right to records in violation of 49 U.S. Code § 14906 - Evasion
of regulation of carriers and brokers through waivers of 371.3 in its contracts.

Indeed, we believe this business practice does not conform to your Code of Ethics,
which states:



1. A m e m b e r shal l deal fairly wi th customers, col leagues, fel low members, and the
genera l publ ic.

2. Amember shall conduct his or her professional life in accordance with thein terests of
TIA, the third-party transportation services industry, and the general transpo t a t i o n
public.

3. Amember shall adhere to honesty and integrity and to generally accepted principles
of professional conduct.

4. Amember shall not engage in any practice, which tends to corrupt, the integrity of
TIA, the third-party transportation services industry or process of goverment .

5. Amember shail make proper, just, and prompt payment for all contractual obligations.

6. A m e m b e r shall ab ide by ail lawful agreements to which he or she is a patty, inc lud ing

all ag reements with shippers, carriers and other transportation intermediar ies.

7. Amember shall compete vigorously ? but not unfairly ? with other members.

8. If a m e m b e r has evidence that another member has been gui l ty of unethical, i l legal or
unfair pract ices, inc lud ing those in violation of this Code, the member shal l present

informat ion prompt ly to TIA.

As we have stated to TOL we believe this practice may even raise restraint o f t rade
issues a n d m a y result in a class action lawsuit under the exist ing private right o f act ion if

this practice is not immediate ly terminated and TOL commits on or before May 10, 2023

that it wi l l in fact cease and desist f rom further engaging in this practice, which

adversely affects our members and their regulatory rights.

We ask T I A p lease issue gu idance to its members an this issue as a numbe - of other

brokers are engaged in this practice and they may be contacted by ana t t o r r ey
represent ing SBTC?s in the near future if this problem persists.

Please advise us the TIA Ethics Committee's decision and whether TIA conciemns or
condones this waiver of 371.3 practice so that we may know how to proceed! in
furtherance of our members' rights under the law.

Thank you.

Sincerely,



és} JAMES LAMB, Executive Director

Small Business in Transportation Coalition, Inc. ("SBTC")

Truckers.com

Visit our new website:

www.smal l t ranspor ta t ion.org

1775 |. (Eye) Street, NW, Suite 1150

Wash ing ton , DC 20006

@JimLambuSA

(202) 587-2751

TIA ETHICS COMPLAINT

C o m p l a i n t Fi led By:

Made Against :

Name J A M E S LAMB

Total Qual i ty Logist ics LLC (TQL)

C o m p a n y Smal l Bus iness in Transportation Coal i t ion, Inc. (SBTC)
TQL MC-322572

Address 1775 |. Streat NW, Ste 1150
4289 IVY POINTE BLVD

City/St/Zip Washington, DC 20006
CINCINNATI, OH 45245

Phone (202) 587-2751

(513) 831-2600

Fax N/A
Unknown

Emai l James@truckers .com

compt iance@tqt .com

Compla in t

Name

C o m p a n y

Address

City/Stuzip

Phone

Fax

Email



Signature /s/ JAMES LAMB, SBTC Executive Director

Date 7 MAY 2023

1. Nature o f compla in t : (At tach addit ional sheet(s) if necessary.)

SBTC be l ieves TQL is v io la t ing the faimess, honesty and integri ty c lauses in your C o d e

of Ethics by hav ing language int h e i r cont rac ts that makes waiver of 371.3 a cond i t ion

for receiv ing loads from TQL because i t i s a blatant attempt to evade regulat ion in

violat ion o f 49 U.S. C o d e § 14906. We believe there can be no reasonab le f inding that

this bus iness practice is ethical when it v io lates Federal law and exist ing reculat ion.

SBTC also believes this does not conform to your best practices inherent within the
attached model broker-carrier contract.

As T I A is a member o f FIATA, we bel ieve this practice violates FIATA pol ic ies as we l l

Antitrust Policy (fiata.org)

Best Practice Guide on Contract Management by FIATA - Flipsnack

FIATA is therefore copied here for their information.

2. Nature o f Ethics C o d e Violat ions (Exptain which TIA Ethics provis ions you be l ieve

were v io la ted and how):

(X) Amember shall deal fairy with customers, colleagues, fellow members, and the

general public.

Compelling a waiver of regulatory rights through contract in violation of 49 CFR 371.3
and 49 U.S. Code § 14906 is unfair

10



(X} A m e m b e r shall conduc t his or her professional life in accordance with the interests

of TIA, the third party transportat ion services industry, and the genera l t ransportat ion
publ ic,

Compelling a waiver of regulatory rights through contract in violation of 49 CFR 371.3

and 49 U.S. Code § 14906 by a rogue brokerage is unprofessional, not in the interests
of TIA, the 3PL industry or the general transportation public.

(X) A m e m b e r shall adhere to honesty and integrity and to genera l ly accepted pr inc ip les
of professional conduct.

Evad ing 4 8 C F R 371.3 in contracts in violation of 49 U.S. Code § 14906 is d i shones t

and lacks integri ty to genera l ly accepted principles of professional conduct zs

ev idenced by TIA?s own model broker-carrier agreement. F M C S A seems to concur in
their a t tached March 1, 2022 letter to the SBTC.

(X) A m e m b e r shal l not engage in any practice, which tends to cormupt, the integri ty of

TIA, the third-party transportation services industry o r process o f g o v e r m e n t .

W e be l ieve that compel l ing a wa ive r o f regulatory rights through contract in violat ion o f

4 9 C F R 371.3 and 49 U.S. Code § 14906 insults the rule of law and is corrupt.

We be l ieve the media has raised serious concems about past TIA leadershi> poss ib ly

co l lud ing wi th U S D O T officiais in this area back in 2020:

Is F M C S A Coord inat ing With Brokers in Battie Over Freight Rate Transparency? -

Transportat ion Nat ion Network (archive.org)

TIA therefore owes its members and the industry clarity on this issue and assurance it

has regained its moral compass contrary to past appearances o f impropriety.

(X) A m e m b e r shall make proper, just, and prompt payment for all contractual

obl igat ions.

11



Payment made under cloak of secrecy in violation of 49 CFR 371.3 cannot be deemed
?just.?

(X) A member shail abide by all lawful agreements to which he or she is a party,
including all agreements with shippers, carriers and other transportation intermediaries.

Agreements which evade regulation in furtherance of restraint of trade are unlawful

under 15 USC§ 1 ,which states:

?Every contract, combinat ion in the form of trust or otherwise, or conspiracy, in restraint

of t rade or commerce a m o n g the several States, or with foreign nations, is dec lared to

be i l legal. Every person w h o shall make any contract or engage in any combina t ion or

consp i racy hereby dec lared to be it legal shall be deemed guiltyo f a felony, and, on

convic t ion thereof, shall be punished by fine not exceeding $100,000,000 if «a

corporat ion, or, if any other person, $1,000,000, or by impr isonment not exceed ing 10

years, or by both said punishments, in the discretion of the court.?

(X} A m e m b e r shal l compete vigorously ? but not unfairly ? with other members .

T l A M e m b e r s evad ing 49 CFR 371.3 are engaged in practices we bel ieve const i tute

unfa i r t r a d e practices and unfair competi t ion with other TIA members, SBTC smal l

broker, carr ier and trucker members, and members of the industry general ly.

If a m e m b e r has ev idence that another member has been guilty o f unethical, i l legal or

unfair pract ices, inc luding those in violation o f this Code, the member shal l present

informat ion prompt ly to TIA.

Although SBTC is a non-member, please see attached documents offered promptly
after SBTC issued its cease and desist letter.

3, Remedy (Explain what you would like the Committee to do to resolve the complaint):

SBTC asks the TIA to p lease issue gu idance to its members on th is issue as a numbe r

of other brokers are engaged in what we contend is this unlawful and quest ionable

business practice. P lease advise SBTC the TIA Ethics Commit tee 's dec is ion in

accordance wi th your time frame in your instruct ions and whether TIA condemns or

12



condones this waiver of 371.3 practice so that we may know how to proceed! in
furtherance of our members? tights under the law.

APPENDIX A

CEASE AND DESIST LETTER TO TOL

From: "Laurence Sacci" <laurence.socci@soccilawfirm.com>

Date: Mon, May 1, 2023 7:54 pm

To: "compl iance@tq l .com" <compl iance@tql .com>

Co: ?lary.minor@dot.gov" <larry.minor@dot.gov>

Subject : C E A S E A N D DESIST DEMAND

May 1, 2023 via Compliance@TQL.com & U.S. Certified Mail, R.R.R.

Total Quality Logistics, LLC

Attn: Chris Brown, Legat Department

4289 Ivy Pointe Blvd.

Cincinnat i , Ohio 45245

Re: CEASE AND DESIST DEMAND

Dear Mr. Brown:

| am the attomey for the Small Business in Transportation Coalition (SBTC). inc., a
50106 non-profit trade organization representing the interests of small business owners
in the transportation industry.

I t h a s come to our attent ion that Total Qual i ty Logistics, LLC (TQL) is engaged in a
quest ionable business practice, which involves requir ing motor carriers and

13



independent truckers to contractually waive their rights to shipper rate information under
49 CFR 371.3 as a condition to do business with TQL.

Our m e m b e r P ink Chee tah Express LLC has provided us with the at tached agreement

which states, in part:

4, C O M P E N S A T I O N . C A R R I E R agrees to perform the Services for BROKER, under

C A R R I E R ' s Operat ing Authori ty exclusively, at a rate mutual ly agreed upon in writ ing in
a TQL Rate Conf i rmat ion (?Rate Confirmation"), which shall be incorporated into this
Agreement, or by Electronic Communicat ions (defined in Sect ion 20). Addit ional ly.. .

c. BROKER and CARRIER shall use commercially reasonable efforts to ver fy the
accuracy of all freight charge billings invoiced by BROKER to CUSTOMERS for the

Services performed by CARRIER. BROKER shall have the right to audit, from time to
time, CARRIER's freight charges, and CARRIER shall fully cooperate with eny audit.

BROKER is not required to disclose its charges to CUSTOMERS, commissions, or
brokerage revenue, and CARRIER waives its right to receive, audit, and/or review
information and documents to be kept as provided in 49 C.F.R. § 371.3..." (emphasis
added).

O u r m e m b e r has also furnished us an emai l from A m y Unger, a T Q L Legal C la ims

Special ist, dated March 17, 2023, wh ich stated to P ink Cheetah Express:

"P lease note that on June 10, 2019 Pink Cheetah Express LLC and Total Qual i ty

Logistics entered into a Broker Carr ier Agreement ("Agreement"). Sect ion 4(c) of the

Ag reemen t states in part:

B R O K E R is not required to disclose its charges to C U S T O M E R S , commissions, or

brokerage revenue, and CARRIER waives its right to receive, audit, and/or rev iew

information and documents to be kept as provided in 49 C.F.R. § 371.3."

We note that TQL is a member of the Transporlation Intermediaries Association (TIA)
and that TIA, as a matter of best practices, published a model broker-carrier contract

many years ago, which does not include the waiver language referenced above. It

therefore appears TIA does not consider your waiver language to be reasonable and

customary.

14



As you know, the FMCSA recently approved the SBTC's May 6, 2020 petitionto open
rulemaking on this matter and denied the Transportation IntermediariesAssoc ia t ion 's
request to open rulemaking to repeal 49 CFR 371.3, thereby dismissing TIA'smisgu ided
argument that property brokers are shippers for the purposes of 49 CFR § 14101b with
wa ive r r ights unde r the law. We expect the rulemaking on our petit ion to c o m m e n c e
shortly.

SBTC's position is that brokers licensed and tegulated by the FMCSA may not
circumvent duly promulgated regulations without being in violation of 49 U.S. Code §

14906 - Evasion of regulation of carriers and brokers. We note with respect to those

brokers that do evade regulation, the statute clearly states:

?A person, or an officer, employee, or agent o f that person, that by any means tr ies to

evade regulat ion provided under this part for carriers or brokers is liable to the Uni ted
States for a civil penalty of at least $2,000 for the first violation and at least $5 ,000 for a

subsequen t violation, and may be s u b j e c tto criminal penait ies."

Furthermore, the SBTC received the attached letter from F M C S A dated March 2, 2022

wh ich we bel ieve affirmed carriers? rights under 49 CFR 371.3 in 2022. Please note

F M C S A stated last year:

?As to your request for gu idance on compl iance with Part 371 during the pendency of

the related rulemaking petit ions filed by SBTC, the Owner-Operator i ndepe rden t

Orivers Associat ion (OOIDA), and the Transportation Intermediaries Associat ion (TIA),

all brokers remain sub jec t to any requirements that are appl icable to them. As to your
request for gu idance ?on how motor carriers and independent truckers shou.d handle

si tuat ions in which they are told they m a y not have loads if the[y] choose to axerc ise
their right to broker transparency,? F M C S A will cons ider this request in connact ion with

SBTC?s M a y 2020 petit ion for rulemaking (emphasis added).?

N o w that the TIA's request that F M C S A repeal 49 C F R 371.3 is of f the table, w e

contend this letter is now authoritative and that TQL must abide by 49 CFR 371.3.

Lastly, as you know, ?restraint of trade" is generally defined as any activity tr at prevents
another party from conducting business as they normally would without such a restraint.

We contend the caselaw is clear when it comes to evasion of federal regulation through

15



Contract for the purpose of engaging in restraint of trade. We remind TQL that 16 U S C
§1 states:

?Every contract, combination in the form of trust or otherwise, or conspiracy, in restraint
of trade or commerce among the several States, or with foreign nations, is declared to
be illegal. Every person who shall make any contract or engage in any combination or

conspiracy hereby declared to be illegal shall be deamed guilty of a felony, and, on
Conviction thereof, shail be punished by fine not exceeding $100,000,000 if a

corporation, or, if any other person, $1,000,000, or by imprisonment not exceeding 10
years, or by both said punishments, in the discretion of the court.?

We offer th is 2022 summary o f act ions before SCOTUS on the matter o f unreasonab le
restraint o f trade:

htips://supreme just ia .com/cases-by- top ic /ant i t rus t !

With many o f our members affected by TQL's evas ion of regulation through contact, it

wou ld appear that this matter is now ripe for a class action.

Accord ing ly , and on beha l f o f independent truckers and small carriers many o f wh ich ,

are dues pay ing memberso f t h e SBTC, the SBTC hereby D E M A N D St h a t TOL

IMMEDIATELY C E A S E A N D DESIST from continuing to engage in this unlawfulp r a c t i c e
o f requir ing carriers wa ive their regulatory rights to rate transparency under 49 C F R

371.3 as a condi t ion to receive loads from TQL and immediately adv ise the S B T C in

wri t ing no later than May 15, 2023 that it has terminated w h a t we bel ieve is ?his unlawfu l
and abus ive practice so that we may know how to proceed.

Thank you for your ant ic ipated cooperat ion.

Sincerely,

Laurence Socci , Esq.

c e :
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